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GFO-15-325 Pre-Application Workshop Questions/Answers
(Responses are in bold and italics)
Please note that the due date for Phase 1 Project Abstracts will be changed from 
August 29th, 2016, 3:00 pm to September 8, 2016, 5:00 pm.
[bookmark: _Toc459970898][bookmark: _GoBack]Definitions

1. What is considered a pilot study? At which point is a project pre-commercial? 

“Pilot scale demonstration” means a small, laboratory model-size demonstration that is larger than a bench-scale demonstration and smaller than a full-size demonstration. “Bench-scale” demonstrations are typically small laboratory set-ups used to verify certain research concepts or processes. It takes the basic research one step further to perform preliminary demonstration tests.  After basic research determines that the technology or strategy has demonstrated preliminary feasibility, a pilot-scale demonstration or test is used to validate results and provide proof of concept. Pilot demonstrations test the design and validity of an approach, and adjustments can be made at this stage before full-scale demonstrations. 


See response to #2 below regarding pre-commercial.

2. How do you define projects that are at the demonstration or pre-commercial stage?

Pre-commercial technologies are new technologies or enhancements of existing technologies that are not commercially available in California. Technologies can include pre-commercial and commercial components, but for the purposes of this solicitation, pre-commercial technologies are determined by the commercial availability in California of the particular component.

Full-scale demonstrations involve the technology demonstration and deployment phase of the project. For the purposes of the EPIC program, technology demonstration and deployment is defined as the installation and operation of pre-commercial technologies or strategies at a scale sufficiently large and in conditions sufficiently reflective of anticipated actual operating environments to enable appraisal of the operational and performance characteristics and financial risks.[footnoteRef:1] [1:   See CPUC “Phase 2” Decision 12-05-037 at pp. 36 and 90, http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/WORD_PDF/FINAL_DECISION/167664.PDF.] 


3. What is considered pre-commercial? For example, would anaerobic conversion be considered pre-commercial?

See response to #2 above.

4. For it to be “pre-commercial technology” (page 20 of solicitation), must it not have been implemented before or could it have been implemented at a different scale and different location?

See response to #2 above.

5. What do you mean when you say “community-scale?”
The intention of “community-scale” is that the feedstock for the facility is supported by the community in which the facility exists. The Energy Commission does not want to promote projects that must transport feedstocks long distances in order for the project to succeed. These projects are meant to be smaller scale demonstration level projects, using what is available locally: next generation of biomass facilities.
See description for “community-scale” in the GFO manual.

6. I don’t understand why 3 MW is the cap for TD&D projects. There is no benefit to being 3 MW versus 100 MW in terms of quantitative benefits.
Projects in Groups 2 and 3 must be sized for 3MW or less of electricity generation, specifically a nameplate capacity of 3 MW AC or smaller. This size limitation is designed to be consistent with the SB 1122 CPUC BioMAT program.[footnoteRef:2]  [2:  http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Published/G000/M143/K960/143960061.pdf ] 


7. Could a community-scale project use all energy on-site, then as the project scales up go to a second location to get a PPA?
A community-scale project can use the produced energy on-site, but it would have to be in IOU territory. All proposals must demonstrate IOU ratepayer benefits.
[bookmark: _Toc459970899][bookmark: _Toc389221695]Eligible Projects
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8. Is it possible to joint venture with another participant on the call today?

Yes, a list of participants is posted at: http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/epic.html#GFO-15-325 
Also, our LinkedIn networking page may provide an opportunity to network with others: bit.ly/CalEnergyNetwork.  

9. When will a recording of the workshops and the list of participants be available?
Workshop participants, the presentation slides and workshop recordings may be found at: http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/epic.html#GFO-15-325  
10. Slide 26, you went over the application requirements for electronic submission.  Will there be a list available to everyone for who is registered?
The online application page is set up for individual users. A list of registered users is not available. However, the list of pre-application workshop participants is available at: http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/epic.html#GFO-15-325 
11. The solicitation indicates that the preferred method of submission is now the Energy Commission Grant Solicitation System, at: https://gss.energy.ca.gov/.  However, the solicitation number does not appear in the system.  Is it expected that the solicitation will soon be available?
The solicitation is now available in the Energy Commission Grant Solicitation System, at https://gss.energy.ca.gov/. 
12. Is there a preference for hard copy vs. electronic submission?

The GFO manual states:
“The preferred method of delivery for this solicitation is the Energy Commission Grant Solicitation System, available at: https://gss.energy.ca.gov/.”

13. On the submission instructions, it is indicated that signatures must be manual, not electronic. How does that work for electronic submission?

The GFO manual states that attachments requiring signature may be scanned and submitted in PDF format.

14. If an applicant responds via the Energy Commission online system, is no other submittal in hard copy or electronic form necessary?
Submitting through the Energy Commission online system is the same as submitting it as an electronic form. All necessary documentation must be submitted as described in the GFO Section III. Application Organization and Submission Instructions. If submitting through the Energy Commission online system, no hardcopy submittal is required.
15. Is the hardcopy submission deadline taken by postmark or in hand?
It must be received by the Energy Commission’s Contracts, Grants and Loans Office by the due date and time. Please note that the time due is 5:00 pm.
16. Is there a limit to the number of people that can be registered at one organization?
This solicitation does not impose limits on the number of people that can be registered at one organization. As necessary, please check with the appropriate authorities, such as the Secretary of State or other government entity that may handle such matters, on other limits that may apply.  
17. Is the submission demo video available online?
Yes, the video is available with the presentation.  They are posted at: http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/GFO-15-325/.
18. How long has this electronic submission system been available?
It has been available for a few months. There have been a few solicitations which have successfully used the electronic process. 
19. Are there considerations for woman or minority owned businesses in the grant factors?
No, extra points are not given for woman or minority owned businesses. However, the Energy Commission is attempting to improve the diversity of its applicant pool and is keeping track of those who apply.
20. Do you know if my campus, University of California Riverside, has an agreement with your agency regarding indirect costs (sometimes called overhead)? I ask because sometimes agencies and other entities will negotiate such agreements and thus pay less than full overhead when grants are funded.
The terms and conditions applicable to UC campuses state the following:
“Indirect Costs
For any of the University of California (UC/Contractor) campuses and the UC Office of the President and the California State University (CSU/Contractor) campuses and the CSU Office of the Chancellor, whether funds are received through a prime award or through a sub-award from another Contractor location, the maximum indirect cost rate allowable under this Agreement is 25% of Modified Total Direct Cost (MDTC).”
21. Some agreements with the State of California have terms that require waivers of sovereign power and immunity by tribes. Do the standard conditions need to be adopted as given?
All entities are expected to accept the Energy Commission’s Terms and Conditions. By signing the application form, the applicant agrees to accept the terms and conditions that correspond to its organization without negotiation. While the Commission has agreements where the project is located on tribal lands, the prime recipient was not a tribe and accepted the terms and conditions that corresponded to its organization. If helpful, requests for copies of EPIC grant agreements may be made by contacting the Energy Commission’s Contracts, Grants, and Loans Office.
22. How does this relate to programs on tribal lands?

See response #21 above.

23. We are located on a Naval Base in Southern California and have completed the NEPA process because we are on federal land. Is this sufficient for the CEQA compliance requirement?
No, CEQA compliance is still required. The Commission will need to review the NEPA documents as part of its CEQA review. 
24. Clearly there is a lot of pent-up demand for a project like this, with about 50 people in the room and another 50 online. Increased amounts of funding that actually reflect that this is a state of emergency would be great.
Currently, only $23 Million is available for this solicitation. In the event that the solicitation is oversubscribed with several passing proposals and insufficient funding, staff may seek approval for additional funding. 
Additional funds above the $23 Million are currently not planned for this solicitation. However, Energy Commission staff is hopeful that there will be a lot of very good passing proposals, which could help build the case for additional funding in this area. 
25. Can you elaborate on the level of construction on a previous project required to be considered?

Groups 2 and 3 must demonstrate that one member of the team has completed at least one project of similar technology level or begun construction of at least one other similar project, page 37. The minimum requirement is that construction on a similar project has begun.

26. For the Group 2 and 3, can the team member experience required be completed outside of California?

Yes, the team member experience requirement may be met with experience on a project of similar technology level or the beginning of construction of at least one other similar project outside California.

27. I am in New York, not a California resident. Please let me know either I am eligible to apply for this grant as a New York resident. My company is also incorporated under jurisdiction of NYS.
Yes, out of state residents are eligible to apply as long as the requirements of the GFO manual are met. See Section II. Eligibility Requirements. 
28. Considering the timing of the solicitation and the current state of emergency, could a company spend the match funds at the time of award (e.g. in March) rather than waiting until October 2017, the agreement start date, to begin?

Match funds may be spent only during the agreement term, either before or concurrently with EPIC funds. Funds used prior to the agreement start date are at the applicants own risk.

29. Given the timing, in the next 16 months technology and availability of equipment will change. Having the abstract/Statement of Work not being able to change could limit the projects.

Proposals may be written in a way that allows for some flexibility, for example, in terms of the likely equipment used, particularly if it is anticipated that the proposed technology is subject to change. However, there may be a risk that the Evaluation Committee is unclear about the strengths of the proposal without specificity. The challenge will be to balance flexibility with a concrete proposal. Providing a solid back up plan and rationale for the proposed backup technology may be a good approach.  Proposals in Phase 2 cannot depart significantly from what was originally proposed in Phase 1.

30. Regarding the T&D location requirements, if the primary purpose is T&D and no applicant has yet completed a fast-track interconnection study for a site, all other criteria being equal, would it be possible for an applicant (between the time of the initial screening and final submittal, or between the final submittal and the contract signing) to choose to change the location of the project?
As noted on page 38, applicants are encouraged to have one or more backup pilot, demonstration, or deployment sites because awards will not be made for at least 6-12 months after Phase 2 proposal submittal. If a site becomes unavailable, the Applicant is responsible for finding another suitable site. The loss of a project site will place the grant award in jeopardy. These situations will be handled on a case-by-case basis. CEQA must be satisfied prior to Commission approval.

Ways that 100 percent site control may be demonstrated include letters attesting to or documentation confirming direct ownership, lease, an option to lease or purchase that may be exercised upon receipt of award, agreement for the use of in-kind real property, or other such supporting documentation. 

31. For the sake of clarity, could “Schedule 6a” be changed to number 7?
It is not possible to change Schedule 6a to 7 for this solicitation. The comment will be noted and considered as a change for future EPIC solicitations.
32. Some other GFO’s talk about operating and maintenance for running the technology, how is that addressed in a proposal?
The budget reporting form is fixed. Applicants must decide the best way to report expenses. For example, operating and maintenance costs might be reported in the budget as part of the overhead rates or, perhaps, as miscellaneous and subcontractor costs.
33. Does the energy production need to happen right away or can it happen in a year or 2 after construction of the project?

Applicants should describe how there is reasonable assurance that electricity generation will happen as a result of the project. This is a competitive solicitation so projects that best align with the GFO manual goals and objectives are likely to score higher. A clear way to demonstrate ratepayer benefits is by demonstrating a high-likelihood in securing an IOU RPS PPA or a Self-Generation Incentive Program agreement and by demonstrating the steps taken to participate in one of these mechanisms for electricity generation. For example, showing project readiness by documenting progress in securing interconnection of the project, by providing copies of the System Impact Study, Phase I study, or documentation demonstrating that the project passed the Fast Track screens or supplemental review, would likely be reviewed favorably by the Evaluation Committee. 
Applicants are expected to provide a description of potential procurement mechanisms and it is recommended that the proposal detail how the project meets project viability criteria. Applicants are encouraged to demonstrate their ability to participate in an RPS procurement mechanism. This may be a letter stating the project, as designed, would qualify to participate in an RPS procurement program. 
Applicants should refer to the CPUC website for RPS procurement rules and structure[footnoteRef:3] as well as SB 1122 legislation[footnoteRef:4] and the CPUC’s SB 1122: Bioenergy Feed-in Tariff (BioMAT) program for program requirements.[footnoteRef:5] The Energy Commission acknowledges that CPUC proceedings are subject to change.  [3:  http://www.cpuc.ca.gov/RPS_Overview/ ]  [4:  http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/pub/11-12/bill/sen/sb_1101-1150/sb_1122_bill_20120927_chaptered.pdf ]  [5:  http://www.cpuc.ca.gov/sb_1122/ ] 

To be eligible for a California Investor Owned Utility RPS procurement mechanism, facilities must be RPS-eligible, which includes being connected to the Western Electricity Coordinating Council (WECC) service area and meeting the requirements in the Renewables Portfolio Standard Eligibility Guidebook.[footnoteRef:6] These requirements include being registered in the Western Renewable Energy Generation Information System (WREGIS) tracking system.  [6:  http://www.energy.ca.gov/portfolio/  Note that the RPS eligible fuel types are broader than the feedstocks allowed in this solicitation and that projects are limited to the feedstock requirements of this solicitation.] 

Alternatively, if participating in the CPUC’s Self-Generation Incentive Program or another renewable procurement mechanism program, applicants should demonstrate how they are qualified for such a program and any efforts taken to participate in the program.
34. Can you receive significant points for potential Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions reduction?

All three groups acknowledge the importance of reducing Short Lived Climate Pollutants, potent GHG emissions, black carbon from catastrophic wildfires and methane from landfills. Projects demonstrating the potential for GHG emission reductions, for example those developing or demonstrating electricity generation systems or technologies in a more environmentally benign manner relative to baseline technology, such as combustion technologies, should demonstrate these co-benefits to allow the Evaluation Committee to fully consider the range of benefits associated with the project. Additionally, in Attachment 12 the Cost and Benefit Calculations provide a basis for applicants to estimate the potential impacts associated with successful completion of their proposals. GHG mitigation is included as a metric.

35. There doesn’t appear to be a metric for measuring the carbon impact of the technology. Is there the possibility of recognition for carbon sequestration?

See Attachment 12 on GHG mitigation. Also, see response #34 above.

36. Is it ok if the project benefits a prison specifically or does it have to benefit the entire ratepayer service area?

It is okay to be a subset of ratepayers, especially if it can be applied or replicated to other prisons in IOU territory, as in the example.

37. Is it possible to consider scales, or to advocate for considering scales?  One of the metrics is benefits to IOU ratepayers, so is there a bigger benefit for larger systems, and is benefits directly correlated with scale?  Because as it is now, no points are assigned to the scale of the project.
Groups 2 and 3 are specifically targeting generation facilities with a nameplate capacity of up to 3MW AC or smaller, consistent with the CPUC Decision Implementing SB 1122.[footnoteRef:7] This is in accordance with being community scale as well as with the CPUC BioMat program requirement.  [7:  http://www.cpuc.ca.gov/SB_1122/  December 18, 2015: CPUC Decision Implementing SB 1122, D.14-12-081 Section 2.5.1 Characteristics of the Generation Facility, page 42.] 

Attachment 12, Cost and Benefit Calculations provides a basis for applicants to estimate the potential impacts associated with successful completion of their proposals. One could include arguments of scale in Attachment 12.
38. Is the 3 MW net power to the grid? What if you had larger generator but had site parasitic loads that netted 3 MW?  Could you build a bigger project and wheel the excess to the wholesale market?
Group 1 does not specify a MW size restriction for generators. Projects in Groups 2 and 3 must be sized for 3MW or less of electricity generation, specifically a nameplate capacity of 3 MW AC or smaller, consistent with the CPUC Decision Implementing SB 1122.[footnoteRef:8]  [8:  Ibid. ] 


39. Regarding the 3 MW cap: is that for total generation on the site or total export? SB 1122 allows for 3 MW or export, could you generate more for on-site use?

For Groups 2 and 3, EPIC funds can be used to fund a nameplate capacity of 3MW AC or smaller, consistent with the SB 1122 program. Group 1 does not have this this 3MW nameplate capacity limitation. Applicants for Groups 2 and 3 must make sure that the project is in line with the purpose of the community-scale requirement of the project.

40. On page 53 of the GFO, there are 20 points dedicated to IOU ratepayers and on point d it says “justifiable quantitative benefits,” which includes things such as kWh. So to clarify, scale will not improve a project’s score?
The Evaluation Committee’s review is not necessarily focused on scale. While one of the examples is annual electricity and thermal savings (kWh and therms), replicability is also considered. So, a project may be small in scale, but if it has wide applicability, then the cumulative potential benefits could be large. Because this is a research and development program, consideration of many of the potential co-benefits is included, such as: peak load reduction and/or shifting, flexible generation, energy cost reductions, integration/reliability services, reduced risk of forest fires, reductions in the amount of biomass that goes to landfills, GHG emission reductions; air emission reductions (e.g., oxides of nitrogen), net local air quality benefits; water use and/or cost reductions; and watershed benefits.
41. Do you see doing more projects in each category with smaller funding? Or pick the top two or three in each category with more funding to assure success.
Proposals will be scored, ranked and recommended for funding award according to the criteria and procedure specified in the application manual. The number of projects funded and the amount funded will be based on several factors, including but not limited to the amount of funding available for each Group, the scores of the proposals, and the amount of funding requested for passing proposals.
42. Is there an estimate for number of awards?
No. Please see response #41 above. 
43. Is there anything in the works for renewable energy credit from the State?

The Energy Commission’s EPIC research program is technology focused. It is not addressing research related to Renewable Energy Credits (REC). Please refer to http://www.energy.ca.gov/renewables/ for more information on renewable energy.

44. Is any feedback provided after phase 1 before going into phase 2?
No. Unsuccessful applicants may request a debriefing after the release of the NOPA by contacting the Commission Agreement Officer listed in Part I. A request for debriefing -may be requested at any time after the NOPA is released.   It would be best to request a debriefing as early as possible.
45. Are there limits to number of applications that can be submitted per group by the same applicant?

Applicants may submit multiple applications, though each application may address only one of the project groups. If an applicant submits multiple applications that address the same project group, each application must be for a distinct project (i.e., no overlap with respect to the tasks described in the Scope of Work, Attachment 6).

46. Can an organization submit more than one project proposal as prime contractor within the same group? The proposals would be for two completely distinct projects.
See response #45 above.
47. Regarding Group-2, in our case, permitting tasks would require some lead time. Is it acceptable to apply for both Group-1 and Group-2 funding -- based on the assumption that tasks accomplished in the AR&D work would provide detailed engineering data, and 500-hours of operating data, needed in a timely way to accomplish the demonstration goals for Group-2? Assume that proof-of-concept is already well established using pilot-scale Process Development equipment prior to the December-16th submittal date.
See response #45 above.
48. For a project under Group 2, (TD&D) can a company propose to include biomass handling and delivery system (such as densification system) at a higher TRL level at demonstration scale and biomass-to-electricity system at lower TRL level at pilot scale? Could you please clarify?
The primary technology being researched or demonstrated for the project must be within the TRL level specified within the specific research Group.  Proposals that are focused on demonstrating qualified biomass to electricity systems in terms of TRL level may use auxiliary components, such as feedstock delivery systems that are proven technology or at a different TRL level. 
[bookmark: _Toc459970901]Application Scoring and Point Distribution

49. Who scores the proposals? Are there outside people? Is it all subjective?
The Energy Commission will organize an Evaluation Committee that consists primarily of Energy Commission staff. Technical expert reviewers may be part of the Evaluation Committee. Several of the scoring criteria require a technically subjective score while others (such as criteria 6. EPIC Funds Spent in California and 7. Ratio of Direct Labor and Fringe Benefit Rates to Loaded Labor Rates) are based on specific percentages and ratios. 

50. When you talk about ratepayer benefits, is that the whole ratepayer base or specific ones?

The reference to ratepayer benefits is pretty general. The following are examples of how the ratepayer benefits of greater reliability, lower costs, and increased safety may be assessed by the Evaluation Committee.

Greater reliability refers to electricity system reliability and/or the ability of the IOUs to more reliably provide electricity to IOU ratepayers. For example, bioenergy projects able to provide an IOU with load-following generation may provide greater reliability as California reaches its renewable energy mandates.

Lower costs refer to IOU ratepayers. For example, projects qualifying for an IOU RPS procurement mechanisms (such as the SB 1122 small-scale bioenergy Feed in-Tariff also known as BioMat) are designed to assist the IOU in achieving its RPS and BioMat mandate, with RPS projects that might otherwise be prohibitively expensive. Projects will be scored on their ability to help reduce technology cost (over time), commercialize new technologies and ultimately serve to benefit IOU electricity ratepayers. 

Increased safety refers to a safer electricity system as a result of the project. For example, projects located in high forest-fire prone utility transmission corridors could attempt to demonstrate how the project would result in increased safety as a result of possible fire hazard reductions. Projects located in Southern California could attempt to demonstrate how the project would help prevent electricity service interruptions by bolstering electricity generation communities more prone to electricity outages. 

51. Can you provide detail on how the ratepayer benefits are assessed? 
See response #50 above.
52. Is there guidance on the weight of point distribution on the sub-criteria for scoring? For example, there are 20 points dedicated to Technical Merit and Need. Is there guidance for how much weight (a) through (f) have, or is it subjective?
No, there is no breakdown of weighted point distribution on the sub-criteria. It is up to the Evaluation Committee to provide an overall score for each criterion.
53. Does a unique business model/co-location obtain points toward innovation of bioenergy technology and application?
It is up to the applicant to describe the innovation of the proposed project. Innovation is likely to be evaluated as part of scoring criteria 1. Technical Merit and Need and 2. Technical Approach. 
54. How extensive of feedstock procurement proof scores maximum points?

Note that Phase 1, Technical Abstract Screening Criteria is Pass or Fail and includes ensuring the Attachment 11 feedstock agreement requirement is met, as applicable. Criteria 4. Team Qualifications, Capabilities, and Resources addresses the quality of the feedstock agreement.    

55. If fabrication of novel equipment is required, is there any penalty associated in using out-of-state vendors?

If you are using EPIC funds to purchase equipment from a vendor outside of California, your score is likely to be negatively impacted in terms of Scoring Criteria 6. EPIC funds spent in CA, which is 15 points. If you are spending less than 60% of EPIC funds in CA, you will receive 0 points for this criterion. Applicants may consider using match funds for funds spent outside of California and spend EPIC funds in California to avoid being penalized. 

56. To gain points for Scoring Criteria section “EPIC Funds Spent in CA” can contractors be located in California, but technology produced outside of California?
See response to #55 above.
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57. Do projects under Group 1 need to be actual bioenergy production facilities? Or could it be something like a desk-based scientific research study which uses state of the art modeling tools to study the economic and environmental impact of fuels treatment and bioenergy facility siting strategies/policies?
Projects do not have to be actual bioenergy production facilities. The GFO manual provides the following example of an eligible type of project: “Projects developing, improving or using tools, techniques, and strategies to evaluate environmental and economic impacts of proposed technology and strategy solutions tied to woody biomass from ‘byproducts of forest management activities’ as defined by the CPUC SB 1122 BioMAT program and/or use of the IOU Distribution Resources Plan (DRP)[footnoteRef:9] as a siting tool for forestry biomass projects, etc.” [9:   DRP CPUC (R.14-08-013) Public Utilities Code Section 769 was instituted by AB 327, Sec. 8 (Perea, 2013). This new code section requires the electrical corporations to file distribution resources plan proposals by July 1, 2015. According to the Code, these plan proposals will “identify optimal locations for the deployment of distributed resources.” It defines “distributed energy resources” as “distributed renewable generation resources, energy efficiency, energy storage, electric vehicles, and demand response technologies.” Available at: http://www.cpuc.ca.gov/General.aspx?id=5071 ] 


58. Regarding group 1: Page 19-20 explains that AR&D project activities may include early, pilot scale testing. Does this mean that projects must work with a specific power generating partner or can we focus on feedstock supply logistics (harvesting of dead trees, processing, and transportation) for different types of existing biomass electricity generators?

Applicants may include a focus on  feedstock supply logistics (harvesting of dead trees, processing, and transportation) that may be suitable for different types of existing biomass electricity generators; however, Applicants should work closely with power generation partners and demonstrate the value or benefit of the logistics strategies on electricity generation. Projects solely addressing the harvesting and/or transportation of woody-biomass without having a tie to electricity generation are not eligible .

59. For Group 1, are innovative harvesting and processing activities eligible if there was an established tie to electricity production, for example working with an entity?

The demonstration of innovative harvesting and processing strategies with a direct tie to electricity generation is eligible. However, projects solely addressing the harvesting and/or transportation of woody-biomass without having a tie to electricity generation are not eligible for funding. See response #57 above.

60. What is the minimum size for the group 2 or 3 projects? Would 100 kW be okay?

There is no minimum size, so 100kW projects are eligible. Cost of the proposal should reflect project costs – meaning one might expect the cost of a smaller system to be less than the cost of a larger system – unless otherwise justified.

61. Regarding feed stock choices, specifically woody biomass vs. prioritization for pine needle and other tree mortality situations. Would additional woody biomass, food processing by-products, or other agricultural residues be possible from that perspective?
The GFO manual states for Group 1:

The fuel source must be “byproducts of sustainable forest management activities” as defined by the CPUC SB 1122 BioMAT program.[footnoteRef:10] Optional bonus points are available to project demonstrating that they are located in High Hazard Zones, as defined by CalFire.[footnoteRef:11] [10:  See CPUC D14-12-081 - Decision Implementing Senate Bill 1122, Section 2.2.3 Bioenergy Using Byproducts of Sustainable Forest Management and Appendix B SB 1122 Forest Biomass – Forest Biomass Sustainability Byproduct Eligibility Form: Instructions and Worksheet. http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Published/G000/M143/K960/143960061.pdf ]  [11:  High Hazard Zones - The link to the HHZ map is: http://egis.fire.ca.gov/TreeMortalityViewer/
Applicants must select boxes for Tier One and Tier Two High Hazard Zones in the Layer Visibility Legend to view the HHZs.] 


The GFO manual states for Group 2:

Group 2 targets demonstration projects that prioritize woody biomass-to-energy projects in accordance with the Governor’s 10-30-2015 Proclamation of a State of Emergency[footnoteRef:12] to protect communities against unprecedented tree die-off.  [12:  https://www.gov.ca.gov/docs/10.30.15_Tree_Mortality_State_of_Emergency.pdf Ordering Paragraph 11 of the Proclamation. ] 

A portion of the woody biomass must come from  High Hazard Zones[footnoteRef:13] (HHZ), defined by CAL FIRE, as directed in the Governor’s 10-30-2015 Tree Mortality Proclamation. There must be verifiable documentation that Group 2 proposals meet this requirement by Phase 2. In the Phase 2 application, Applicants must provide supporting narrative or documentation, such as an agreement or permit to collect woody biomass from specific areas within a HHZ or a map showing the area of operation. Additionally, the woody biomass must be byproducts of sustainable forest management activities as defined by the CPUC’s BioMAT program. Applicants should explain how this requirement will be met. [13:  The link to the HHZ map is:  http://egis.fire.ca.gov/TreeMortalityViewer/ Applicants must select boxes for Tier One and Tier Two High Hazard Zones in the Layer Visibility Legend to view the HHZs. ] 


As noted in the GFO manual:

“The CPUC’s BioMAT program states that:

“For bioenergy using byproducts of sustainable forest management, 50 megawatts. Allocations under this category shall be determined based on the proportion of bioenergy that sustainable forest management providers derive from sustainable forest management in fire threat treatment areas, as designated by the Department of Forestry and Fire Protection.”[footnoteRef:14] [14:  http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Published/G000/M143/K960/143960061.pdf  Section 2.2.3, page 22.] 

The CPUC Decision also notes:

“As with the other bioenergy technology categories, the general requirement that at least 80% of the fuel source, measured on an annual basis, must be of the type designated by the generator as the fuel source applies to the overall technology category of “by-products of sustainable forest management,” as characterized in this decision. If the generator chooses to use up to 20% fuel not of the designated type, it must use fuel that complies with the requirements set out in this decision for eligibility under SB 1122.”[footnoteRef:15] [15:  Ibid. Section 2.2.3.5, page 32.] 


The GFO manual will be amended to read:

Consistent with the CPUC’s decision, the same general feedstock requirement applies to Group 2. At least 80% of the fuel source, measured on an annual basis must be from “byproducts of sustainable forest management.” Additionally, some portion of the woody biomass must come from HHZs, as described above.
To ensure that the Evaluation Committee is able to determine that the project meets the feedstock requirements, applicants must to provide a breakdown of the proposed feedstocks and demonstrate how 80% of the feedstock will be made up of byproducts of sustainable forest management in terms of wet/dry tons per year. Per Attachment 11, Applicants are required to submit Intent and Commitment Letters for Feedstock Agreements. These feedstock agreements will be used to verify that the feedstock requirements (both type including primary and other and annual amount in dry/wet tons) will be met. An additional feedstock summary letter from the Applicant must be provided, describing each one of the expected feedstocks by type (including by primary and other), quantities of each feedstock (dry/wet tons) per month and/or quarter (as available) and/or year, as well as overall totals for the project term (by year). 
The feedstock summary letter, the feedstock letters of intent and commitment, along with the Project Abstract and, as applicable, Project Narrative will be considered by the Evaluation Committee in evaluating the project. Additionally, projects will be required to report monthly or quarterly (consistent with project progress report schedule) as well as annually on the type (including primary and other), quantity (dry/wet tons) of each feedstock and overall totals. 
Projects using a small overall percentage of woody biomass from sustainable forest management activities will compete against other proposals that may have a higher percentage. There is a risk that the Evaluation Committee will not respond favorably to projects using smaller percentages of biomass from sustainable forest management in fire treatment areas given the focus of the solicitation.   

62. Do both group 1 and 2 require that the project be located in a high tree mortality zone? 

For Group 1, bonus points are available for projects located in a High Hazard Zone as defined by CalFire.  For Group 2, a portion of the woody biomass must come from High Hazard Zones.

63. What are the high hazard zones on Slide 14? 

The original six counties include: Fresno, Kern, Madera, Mariposa, Tuolumne, and Tulare.  Recently added to the list are Calaveras, Amador, El Dorado, and Placer counties.
64. For Group 2 projects, some of the biomass must come from HHZ. Does this imply cooperation of forestry service is necessary?  Is there a list of possible contacts?

In Phase 1, general letter(s) of intent for Feedstock Agreement(s) and a summary feedstock letter are required (see Attachment 11 for details). By the Phase 2 application, applicants must provide supporting narrative or documentation, such as an agreement or permit to collect woody biomass from specific areas within a HHZ or a map showing the area of operation. A letter showing a commitment from the USFS, CalFire, a private land owner, etc. to harvest/use dead trees would likely be viewed favorably by the Evaluation Committee, but it must be submitted as part of the Phase 2 application. 

For the Feedstock Agreement(s) for AR&D pilot projects or TD&D projects, applicants must: 
· Identify the feedstock(s) and explain how the feedstock meets the requirements for the project group and include feedstock types (categorized by primary and other) and expected monthly or quarterly (as available) and/or annual amounts (wet or dry ton
· Describe the feedstock(s) location relative to the project site; 
· Explain the proposed plan for transporting the feedstock to the project site; 
· Provide assurance there will be sufficient feedstock for the life of the project (project term); and 
· Other helpful information that may be useful to the reviewing and scoring team (for example, applicants may include a “Forest Biomass Sustainability Byproduct Eligibility Form” from Appendix B of the CPUC Decision Implementing Senate Bill 1122).[footnoteRef:16]  [16:  Ibid... ] 

It is possible to provide multiple commitment letters, for example: 1) a letter describing the requirements above and signed by the applicant or feed stock provider; and 2) a letter signed by an authorized representative of the proposed feedstock committing to provide feedstock for the proposed activities during the terms of the project. An additional letter from the Applicant describing each one of the expected feedstocks by type (and categorized as primary and other), amount (wet/dry ton) per month and/or quarter (as available) and/or year for the project term (by year) must be provided. This summary feedstock letter and the Feedstock Intent/Commitment Letters will be used to evaluate how the feedstocks meet the project requirements. 

We do not have individual contact information available; it is up to the applicant to initiate partnerships. The link to the Tree Mortality Task Force is: http://www.fire.ca.gov/treetaskforce/ and the link to the member agencies and organizations is: http://www.fire.ca.gov/treetaskforce/about 

The link to the HHZ map is http://egis.fire.ca.gov/TreeMortalityViewer/ Applicants must select boxes for Tier One and Tier Two High Hazard Zones in the Layer Visibility Legend to view the HHZs.

65. For Group 2, the solicitation documents describe a “portion” of woody biomass must come from High Hazard Zones (HHZ)…”  What is considered a “portion?” 

It means any portion. However, this is a competitive solicitation. If one project is only using a small portion of woody biomass from a HHZ and another is using a large portion, all things being equal, the one with a large portion is likely to be viewed more favorably by the Evaluation Committee in Scoring Criteria 1. Technical Merit and Need because it is in better alignment with the goals of the solicitation.

66. Group 2 feedstock agreements – does the “life of the project” refer to the lifespan of the power plant or the term of the EPIC project?

The feedstock agreement refers to the term of the EPIC project. If the feedstock agreement is longer than the EPIC term, consider including this information in your application as it may be of interest to the Evaluation Committee in terms of evaluating the likelihood of success.
67. Is it somehow possible for demonstration to show a longer distance and transit time for some feedstocks, say more than 50 miles, and in preparation for the transferable to the IOUs. If the feedstocks is not widely available, is that pragmatic?

The GFO manual notes that the Groups 2 and 3 projects must be community-scale and is described in Group 2 as:

“Projects must be “community-scale” or “community-scale” focused. This means the proposed projects will support or use technologies and strategies sized to use the quantity of locally sourced biomass available for power generation. The feedstock must be adequate considering available biomass supply, cost, and distance from the generating facility. Environmental and/or community concerns, such as maintaining materials needed for soil fertility, habitat, and erosion control, providing jobs, as well as providing other benefits to local communities will also be taken into consideration. Applicants should explain how the proposal is community-scale, providing examples and supporting documentation as applicable.”

Applicants should explain why and how feedstocks with a longer distance and transit time meet the definition of community scale. Applicants should also be aware that this is a competitive solicitation and longer distances and transit times could ultimately result in a less favorable score. All things being equal, projects supporting or using technologies and strategies sized to use the quantity of locally sourced biomass for power generation would score higher. Applicants should explain and document any planned transitions to more locally sourced biomass to justify what may be initially longer distance and travel times. 

68. These trees are dead, by definition, is it reasonable to assume moisture content is only 10%? For processing biomass, a lot of BTU value is used to dry the trees, and 50 – 60% moisture is normal in live trees.  When trees are dead, is moisture content for these trees 10% or less?

It is reasonable to assume that dead trees have lower moisture content than living trees. The longer the dead tree stays in the forest, the lower its moisture content down to a certain equilibrium level depending on a number of factors such as relative humidity which varies by location and by time (seasons). 10 percent moisture content may seem a reasonable assumption for purposes of rough calculations, but consider conducting a literature review on the moisture content of woody biomass for additional confidence in the assumptions. Explain your rationale for assumptions and site sources, as appropriate.

69. Do Groups 1 and 2 get bonus points for leveraging food waste?

No. Only Group 3 projects are eligible for bonus points for leveraging food waste. See pages 55-56 for more information regarding the optional bonus points for each Project Group.

70. Would a proposal using as feedstock wet-organic cellulosic biowaste from the Naval Station including: kitchen food-waste, yard & trimmings-waste and possibly office wastepaper be in compliance with GFO-15-325?  If so, to which group should we respond to: Group 2 Woody Biomass-to-Electricity Systems, or Group 3 Food Waste Biomass-to-Electricity?
As described in the question, this project would not be eligible for Groups 1 or 2 because both Groups require that: “The fuel source must be “byproducts of sustainable forest management activities” as defined by the CPUC SB 1122 BioMAT program.[footnoteRef:17]”   [17:  See CPUC D14-12-081 - Decision Implementing Senate Bill 1122, Section 2.2.3 Bioenergy Using Byproducts of Sustainable Forest Management and Appendix B SB 1122 Forest Biomass – Forest Biomass Sustainability Byproduct Eligibility Form: Instructions and Worksheet. http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Published/G000/M143/K960/143960061.pdf ] 

Further, for Group 2: “A portion of the woody biomass must come from  High Hazard Zones (HHZ), defined by CAL FIRE, as directed in the Governor’s 10-30-2015 Tree Mortality Proclamation.” 
See questions and answers below under the “Group 3 – Food-Waste Feedstock” heading to determine if your project would qualify. 

71. For Group 3, consider a project where an existing food-waste facility is already built and is considered a 9 on the DOE scale, but the project would be more of an R&D-type project to boost biogas production. Would that qualify or is there an expectation for the funds to be allocated towards building new facilities?
Applicants are not required to build a new facility to receive funding. For example, if there is an existing facility demonstrating the effectiveness of a new feedstock and providing an analysis of what the experimental results mean for the eventual operating system/ environment, an applicant could make the argument that the proposal meets the solicitation requirements. The funding request for a project should be commensurate to the scope of work to be performed and will be evaluated by the Evaluation Committee. 
72. In accordance with II.B.1.b of the GFO (page 20), Group 3 projects must fall within the “technology demonstration and deployment” stage (TRL7 through TRL9), which involves the installation and operation of pre-commercial (or not widely used in California) technologies.  Please clarify if anaerobic digestion technology would generally be considered pre-commercial and not widely used in California, for purposes of this GFO, or if an anaerobic digestion project would need to include an innovative aspect for eligibility.
Anaerobic digestion projects must include an innovative aspect to be eligible under this solicitation. The applicant should explain why EPIC funds should be spent on the project, why it is considered pre-commercial, and how it will advance that science and/or technology. Note that if there are anaerobic digesters that are already commercial in California, it is up to the applicant to demonstrate the innovation or justify that the technology is pre-commercial in California.
73. In terms of TRL, do you have to be at that stage at the time you apply or at the award date?
Applicants must demonstrate the TRL of the project at the time of the application due date. It is possible that the TRL of the project could change between the Phase 1 application submittal and the Phase 2 application submittal. Projects may advance TRLs within the course of a project, but must start out within a certain range specified for a particular group.
74. For Group 3 projects—are we limited to a deployment of a new technology or can we use an existing technology?  

Group 3 supports projects that advance research and development of sustainable food waste biomass-to-electricity systems (as described in the GFO manual) and is not limited to using either new technology or existing technology. Projects that will use an existing technology must demonstrate and justify the innovative aspect of the proposed research and development in order to receive score and qualify for funding in this solicitation. See response for #72.
Proposals must meet the requirements of the solicitation, which, for Group 3, focuses on post-consumer food waste as the primary feedstock. The Energy Commission’s Second EPIC Investment Plan[footnoteRef:18] explains the overarching purpose of the funding initiative in Strategic Objective 13.2:  [18:   http://www.energy.ca.gov/2014publications/CEC-500-2014-038/  page 132.] 

“This initiative addresses issues limiting full-scale deployment of promising bioenergy systems and develops publicly available data on the operational characteristics of these technologies and best practices. The biopower demonstration projects will use technologies and strategies sized for environmentally and economically sustainable use of locally available biomass resources and provide benefits to local communities and IOU electricity ratepayers. Eligible projects under this initiative will reduce the waste products while providing additional co-benefits to electricity ratepayers and facility operators.”

75. Can a waste hauler in the city of Los Angeles located in LADWP territory still apply?

All projects receiving EPIC funds must demonstrate IOU ratepayer benefits. If a project is not located in IOU territory, the applicant must describe intentions of obtaining an IOU PPA and/or IOU ratepayer benefits.

Note that the solicitation states:

“The following are ineligible for funding: 

· Projects solely addressing the transportation or processing of food-waste or other issues without having a direct tie to biomass-to-electricity generation. 
· Projects focused primarily on injecting biomethane into the natural gas pipelines.
· Because EPIC is funded by IOU ratepayers, it is anticipated that projects will be located in IOU service territory. If the project is not located in IOU territory, applicant must describe intentions of obtaining an IOU PPA and/ or IOU ratepayer benefits in the Project Abstract and Project Narrative (Attachment 4). 
· Projects in POU territory intending to use on-site generation are not eligible.”
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76. If you are a shipper for harvested broccoli and there is a lot of waste does that count? Are you looking for post-consumer food waste?

Waste from broccoli harvesting is not a food-waste that is typically landfilled, and is therefore not eligible as a primary feedstock. However, it can be used in conjunction with the primary feedstocks.

To better address these sorts of questions, the GFO manual will be amended to read:

“Eligible feedstocks include food-waste that is typically landfilled (for example, from schools, hospitals, prisons, or residential food-waste programs), as well as Fats Oil and Grease (FOG) and/or Grease Trap Waste (GTW). Food-waste that is typically landfilled should make up at least 70% of the total project feedstocks. The solicitation acknowledges that the eligible feedstocks and “other” feedstocks may likely be subsets within the same CPUC biogas feedstock category. For purposes of this solicitation, the expectation is that the primary feedstocks (food-waste that is typically landfilled, FOG and/or GTW) will make up at least 70% of the total feedstock(s) covered by awarded project. Projects using higher percentages are likely to be scored higher, as they may better align with the Group 3 purpose and goals. Projects using less than 70% of the primary feedstock(s) need to strongly justify why this is needed for project success.” Preference will be given to proposals that leverage existing food recovery collection and distribution programs and demonstrate that steps have been taken to ensure that rescued food is used to feed people prior to recovering food-waste for electricity generation.[footnoteRef:19]  [19:  http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/organics/food/Donation/default.htm page ES-1] 

Other organic waste feedstocks (which must be consistent with those listed in SB 1122 biogas category: wastewater treatment, municipal organic waste diversion, and food processing)[footnoteRef:20] may be used in conjunction with eligible feedstocks if necessary for project viability. For purposes of this solicitation, food-waste does not mean food processing waste or food-waste from farms. However, food processing waste and/or food-waste from farms may be used in conjunction with the primary eligible feedstocks. In situations where food processing or “other” eligible feedstocks are higher than 30% of the total project feedstock, the applicant must provide a strong justification as to why this is necessary for project success.” [20:  http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Published/G000/M143/K960/143960061.pdf See page 10. ] 

And the following paragraphs:
“To ensure that the Evaluation Committee is able to determine that the project meets the primary feedstock requirements, applicants must provide a breakdown of the proposed feedstocks and demonstrate how food-waste that is typically landfilled, FOG and/or GTW make up 70% of the feedstock in terms of dry/wet tons per year. Per Attachment 11, Applicants are required to submit Intent and Commitment Letters for Feedstock Agreements. These feedstock agreements will be used to verify that the feedstock requirements (both type including primary and other and annual amount in dry/wet tons) will be met. An additional feedstock summary letter from the Applicant must be provided, describing each one of the expected feedstocks by type (including by primary and other), quantities of each feedstock (dry/wet tons per month/quarter and year) as well as overall totals for the project term (by year). 

The feedstock summary letter, the feedstock letters of intent and commitment, along with the Project Abstract and, as applicable, Project Narrative will be considered by the Evaluation Committee in evaluating the project feedstocks as well as the justification for projects that have percentages of “other” feedstocks (not the primary feedstocks) over 30%. Additionally, projects will be required to report monthly or quarterly (consistent with project progress report schedule) as well as annually on the type (including primary and other), quantity (dry/wet tons) of each feedstock and overall totals. 

77. For Group 3, you mention that “food processing waste” cannot be used as a primary feedstock.  Could you describe “food processing waste,” and what is the preface for that?
This solicitation is focusing on food-waste streams that are typically landfilled and includes food processing waste as an eligible feedstock for up to 30% of the total annual feedstock covered in a project. This percentage is designed to maintain the project of food-waste that is typically landfilled (from schools, hospitals, and prisons, etc.), FOG and/or GTW from restaurants as the primary feedstock.  Diverting organic matter from landfills would help decrease harmful landfill gas emissions. The main component of landfill gas, methane, is a Short Lived Climate Pollutant (SLCP). According to CARB’s Draft Short-Lived Climate Pollutant Reduction Strategy, SLCPs are powerful climate forcers and dangerous air pollutants and “cutting emissions of SLCP can immediately slow global warming and reduce the impacts of climate change.” Landfill gas is responsible for approximately 20 percent of statewide methane emissions.[footnoteRef:21]  [21:  http://www.arb.ca.gov/cc/shortlived/2015draft.pdf See page 39 ] 

78. The solicitation reads: “food waste does not mean food processing waste, however food processing waste may be used in conjunction with primary eligible feedstock.”  Is there a better definition for the feedstock somewhere?  What about food-waste from farms? Does this group only include landfill diversion food waste, or is agricultural food-waste left in the field also allowable?
The emphasis of Group 3 is on food waste that is typically landfilled. Food directly from farms would not be considered a primary food-waste feedstock for purposes of this solicitation. Farm food-waste is considered an “other” feedstock and may be used in conjunction with the primary food-waste feedstocks (up to 30% of the project feedstock). The proposal (using Attachment 11 Intent and Commitment Letters for Feedstock Agreements and the feedstock summary letter) must clearly demonstrate how food-waste that is typically landfilled/FOG and/or GTW recovery from restaurants are the primary feedstock(s) (at least 70%) or risk being disqualified for not meeting the solicitation requirements. If the percentage of primary feedstocks is less than 70%, the Applicant must strongly justify why this is the case and necessary for project success.
Also see responses regarding Group 3 feedstock requirements above. 

79. Please provide clarification on page 23 Eligible Feedstocks.  Perhaps provide more definition.  It seems that the goal of this GFO (group 3) is to generate electricity from biomass.  It would also seem that the language indicates onsite generation is acceptable.  1.a  Are food processing plants eligible?  Typically their waste streams are trucked to waste dumps and they are IOU ratepayers.  1.b  Are farms eligible? Typically their waste streams are put out into large uncultivated land acreage.  Generally speaking this creates methane directly to the environment. They too, are IOU ratepayers.
See responses above regarding food processing waste and farm waste. These waste types do not qualify as a primary feedstock for purposes of this solicitation, but may account  for up to 30% of total annual feedstock covered by the project. If the percentage of primary feedstocks is less than 70%, the Applicant must strongly justify why this is the case and necessary for project success.
80. Group 3: Does the feedstock have to be exclusively food-waste? Is there a minimum amount of food-waste set to be used in this project?

See responses regarding Group 3 feedstock requirements above.

If there are multiple feedstocks, in a feedstock summary cover letter, list the approximate annual tonnage per waste feedstock (wet or dry) per year (and monthly or quarterly if available) and demonstrate how the eligible feedstocks will make up the primary portion of the total waste used in the project. The information may be presented as in the format below:
Feedstocks for Project
Primary Feedstocks
· Food-waste from schools = 15 wet tons/year
· Food-waste from prisons = 15 wet tons/year
· FOG from restaurants = 20 wet tons/year
· GTW from restaurants = 20 wet tons/year
Other Feedstocks
· Food Processing Waste = 30 wet tons/year
Total Project Feedstock per year = 100 wet tons/year
Primary Feedstock = 70% of Total Project Feedstock
Other Feedstock = 30% of Total Project Feedstock
This example shows that food processing waste will be included in the project feedstock, but it is not a primary feedstock and does not make up more than 30% of the total project feedstock. The amount of proposed food processing waste is allowable in this example. In a situation where food processing or “other” eligible feedstocks are higher than 30% of the total project feedstock, the applicant must provide a strong justification as to why this is necessary for project success.
Attachment 11, Intent/Commitment Letter(s) for Feedstock Agreements and the Applicant Feedstock Summary Letter will be used to verify the project feedstocks meet the solicitation requirements and to evaluate the proportions of eligible feedstocks versus “other” feedstocks used in conjunction for project viability. Applicants must indicate the expected amount of feedstock per year (monthly or quarterly – if available) – in terms of wet or dry tons (or pounds), as applicable.
81. The gasifier/CHP would use food waste in conjunction with other feedstocks (waste woody biomass – recovered shipping pallets, tree-trimming/landscape waste, etc.). We anticipate that the food waste component will comprise at least 20% of the total feedstock blend. Would this be acceptable to CEC for this solicitation?

The GFO manual will be updated to clarify that Group 3 must be biochemical conversion technologies. Thermochemical conversion technologies are not eligible for Group 3.

82. The Grant Funding Opportunity manual states that “Other waste feedstocks may be used in conjunction with eligible feedstocks if necessary for project viability.”  Is there any minimum requirement for the percentage of food waste in the overall feedstock blend?

It has been clarified that food-waste that is typically landfilled, FOG and/or GTW should comprise at least 70% of the primary feedstock. The remaining 30% may come from other sources, which must be consistent with one of the four listed in SB 1122 biogas category: wastewater treatment, municipal organic waste diversion, food processing, and codigestion. If the primary feedstock(s) are less than 70%, there must be a strong justification as to why this is needed for project success. Also see responses regarding Group 3 feedstock requirements above. 

If this is a codigestion project, the feedstocks covered by the project (as provided in the Letter of Intent and Commitment for Feedstock Agreement and feedstock summary letter) is what will be considered in determining if the primary feedstock requirement is met. 
For example, if a project proposes to co-digest 10 wet tons/ year of food-waste from schools (that is typically landfilled) at an existing wastewater treatment facility, the food-waste from schools is 100% of the project feedstock as this is the feedstock covered by the project. In this example, the waste currently used at the existing wastewater treatment facility would not be part of the equation to evaluate how the project meets the eligible feedstock preferences and requirements.
83. For Group 3, does it all have to be rescued food?
It is not a requirement that the feedstock be rescued food. However, Group 3 projects that adequately demonstrate how the project leverages food recovery collection and distribution programs before using the feedstock for bioenergy purposes may receive additional points. The approach taken must be demonstrated to be reasonable and effective in ensuring that rescued food is used to feed people prior to recovering food‑waste for electricity generation.
84. Can byproducts from FOG that is processed into biodiesel be used as a primary feedstock for Group 3?  The byproduct of FOG used for biodiesel production would be used in an anaerobic digester to produce biogas for electric generation. Is this a qualified primary feedstock?

One of the main goals of Group 3 is to reduce food waste, including FOG, going to landfills. 
This solicitation is focused primarily on generation of electricity as it is funded through a surcharge on IOU electricity ratepayers.

The question makes it sound like the primary conversion is FOG into biodiesel. Byproducts from FOG-to-biodiesel production would not be considered a primary feedstock in this solicitation. 

FOG as the main feedstock for electricity generation and, perhaps, co-digestion with FOG byproducts could meet the solicitation requirements. See responses regarding Group 3 feedstock requirements above. 

The Energy Commission’s Fuels and Transportation Division just released a solicitation with approximately $37 million available for community and commercial scale advanced biofuels production facilities. The proposed bioenergy pathway may be more relevant to the aforementioned funding opportunity.[footnoteRef:22] [22:  http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/transportation.html#GFO-15-606  Grant Funding Opportunity (GFO-15-606) Community-Scale and Commercial-Scale Advanced Biofuels Production Facilities] 
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85. Can the demonstration be at one location then deployed to another with site control/CEQA? The project is modular and moves up in size.
It is the burden of the applicant to explain to the scorers why a project will demonstrate at one location and deploy at another. If this is a TDD project, the proposal should clearly explain how in intends to secure a PPA or generate electricity for on-site use in IOU territory.  
86. Can technology be added in modules/amped up in phases for technology deployment and demonstration applications? For example could the initial installation and deployment be a one-megawatt module that eventually becomes three modules of one-megawatt each?

It is acceptable to apply for the installation and deployment of a 1 MW module that eventually becomes three modules of one-megawatt each. 

87. As far as the requirement that electricity be the primary product, how will that point be made in a complex array where the chronologies that come from the project are varied and diverse? How would the Commission determine that the project satisfies this requirement?
This is a competitive solicitation, so those that make a stronger case that electricity generation is the primary component are expected to score better. These projects are funded through a surcharge on electricity ratepayers; Applicants should clearly describe how projects will result in the generation of renewable electricity to assist the IOUs in meeting their RPS goals.

88. What metric will be used to determine if electricity generation is the primary product?
Applicants are expected to provide a description of potential procurement mechanisms and detail how the project meets basic project viability criteria.
Applicants should refer to the CPUC website for RPS procurement rules and structure[footnoteRef:23] as well as SB 1122 legislation[footnoteRef:24] and the CPUC’s SB 1122: Bioenergy Feed-in Tariff program for program requirements.[footnoteRef:25] The Energy Commission acknowledges that the CPUC proceedings are subject to change.  [23:  http://www.cpuc.ca.gov/rps_procurement_programs/ ]  [24:  http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/pub/11-12/bill/sen/sb_1101-1150/sb_1122_bill_20120927_chaptered.pdf ]  [25:  http://www.cpuc.ca.gov/PUC/energy/Renewables/hot/SB_1122_Bioenergy_Feed-in_Tariff.htm ] 

To be eligible for a California Investor Owned Utility RPS procurement mechanism, facilities must be RPS-eligible, which includes being connected to the Western Electricity Coordinating Council (WECC) service area and meeting the requirements in the Renewables Portfolio Standard Eligibility Guidebook.[footnoteRef:26] These requirements include being registered in the Western Renewable Energy Generation Information System (WREGIS) tracking system.  [26:  http://www.energy.ca.gov/renewables/documents/index.html#rps ] 

Applicants should review the CPUC Staff Proposal on SB 1122 project viability criteria.[footnoteRef:27] While these criteria are not final, they provide examples of what may be considered project viability criteria. For example, demonstration that progress has been made in securing interconnection of the project, by providing copies of the System Impact Study, Phase I study, or documentation demonstrating that the project passed the Fast Track screens or supplemental review, would likely be reviewed very favorably by the Evaluation Committee.  [27:  http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/word_pdf/FINAL_DECISION/167679.pdf pages 69-70.] 

89. In a demonstration project where the electricity is produced off-grid and eventually it could go into a PPA, how would this be demonstrated?
It is possible to generate electricity for on-site use, for example through the CPUC’s Net Energy Metering program. 
If you are planning to generate electricity for on-site use (only allowable if the project is located in IOU territory) and you demonstrate in the application steps taken to make that happen, the Evaluation Committee will likely have a clearer indication that the project will ultimately generate renewable electricity. If you ultimately intend to secure a PPA, you should explain this in the application and demonstrate the likelihood of this happening. The stronger the likelihood that the project will result in a PPA the better it is likely to score.
90. How difficult is it to get a PPA?
It is admittedly difficult to get a PPA, although there is legislation requiring IOUs to have certain renewable energy procurement agreements and/or provide SGIP offerings. The BioMAT program is now in process so there may be more opportunities to secure bioenergy electricity agreements than in the past.
91. For Groups 2 and 3 that would have Power Purchasing Agreements with the IOUs, what would the electricity rate be?
Applicants are encouraged to review the starting price and price adjustments for the Renewable Auction Mechanism (RAM), the SB 1122 BioMAT program and other programs that may apply to better understand how the pricing structures work. The CPUC Decision implementing SB 1122 dedicates over 10 pages to “Price” and Appendix C provides an overview of the ReMAT pricing mechanism.[footnoteRef:28] Attachment 12 has the CPUC’s LCOE spreadsheet, and it helps applicants provide an approximation of what the LCOE would be. It is advisable to complete the LCOE worksheet and review the pricing options in the ReMAT and BioMAT programs to get a sense as to how well the project is likely to compete for a PPA.  [28:  http://www.cpuc.ca.gov/SB_1122/  See December 8, 2015 CPUC Decision  implementing SB 1122 – D.14-12-081] 

92. Does the solicitation allow biogas production project intended to generate electricity that will be used to run another facility for construction in succeeding years?
This is a competitive solicitation and projects resulting in electricity generation are likely to be reviewed favorably by the Evaluation Committee. Applicants are encouraged to demonstrate how the project will ultimately generate electricity. Projects geared solely at producing biogas without a direct tie to electricity generation are not eligible. Further, projects focused primarily on injecting biomethane into the natural gas pipelines are not eligible. 
93. Bioenergy for on-site use—please expand the definition to indicate if it can also mean use of electricity in a nearby facility which is not contiguous to where the biogas is generated. A biogas facility could be part of another co-generating project in the coming year.

See response to #92 above.
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94. Does the 500 hour performance test requirement need to be for electricity production? 
For Groups 2 and 3 ONLY: 500 hours of data is needed for any pre-commercial (not widely used in California) technologies being demonstrated at the facility. Applicants must review the GFO manual to determine if a specific proposal meets the GFO requirements. 

The 500 hour performance data does not necessarily need to be for electricity production; however, it is strongly recommended that the proposal explain how the 500 hour performance data ties into the ultimate goal of generating renewable electricity (in Attachment 13). It is the responsibility of the applicant to make the case as to why the 500 hours of performance data meets the solicitation requirements. For example, if the 500 hours of performance data relates to an integral component of how the system will ultimately function in terms of generating renewable electricity, the applicant should explain this.

Applicants must submit performance data to be evaluated on readiness for demonstration at the scale to be funded by this solicitation. A report is needed with analysis of the 500 hours of performance data proving that the project and/or strategy is demonstration and/or deployment ready. Applications that do not contain performance data and analysis supporting that the project is demonstration ready will not be evaluated. 

Performance data should support the project purpose, such as emission control projects that provide test data showing the technology has reduced emissions at pilot or larger scale. Other examples of performance data include, but are not limited to, heat rate, capacity factor, and air pollution emissions, information on feedstock quality, conversion efficiency, and results of ramping capability tests on engine generator, heat rates, and capacity.

The readiness of the proposed technology and/or strategy will be considered by the Evaluation Committee. 
95. Do the 500 hours of demonstration required to be contiguous hours?  

No, the 500 hours of demonstration do not need to be contiguous.

96. Regarding Slide 22, quality of data is more important than quantity. Some sets of equipment only get 100 hours of use.

The 500 hours of performance test data can be fulfilled cumulatively by several different sets of data from different types of projects/activities. Applicants should justify the use of different sets of data to cumulatively meet the 500 hours of performance data requirement. 

See responses #94 and #95 above.

[bookmark: _Toc459970906]Interconnect Contract and Projects Located Outside of IOU territory

97. On page 25, Section II.B.2.c in the section “The following are ineligible for funding”, one of the ineligible project types listed is “projects in POU territory intending to use on-site generation”. On the same page, Section II.B.3 there is a sentence that reads “For Groups 2 and 3, there should be an ultimate goal and intention of securing an electricity generation Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with one of the California Investor Owned Utilities (IOUs) or generating electricity for on-site use” Again on page 26, same section, there is a sentence that reads “Information regarding the process and progress made to secure the ability to generate electricity for on-site use should be explained in the proposal.” Is using electricity for on-site generation an eligible or ineligible project type?
The GFO manual notes that projects in POU territory intending to use on-site generation are not eligible for funding. However, projects in IOU territory intending to use on-site generation are eligible for funding.
Applications with projects located outside IOU service territories are eligible to apply. However, a strong case must be demonstrated that the project will provide IOU electricity ratepayer benefits. As a reminder, this is a competitive solicitation and the level of IOU ratepayer benefits provided will be reflected in the final score.

98. On page 19, Section II.A.1 there is a phrase that reads “funds administered by the Energy Commission may not be used for any purposes associated with publicly-owned utilities”. Is this specific to publically owned electric utilities? We are looking at opportunities to work with a publically owned wastewater treatment facility employing food waste co-digestion practices. Is this facility excluded from participating in the proposal effort and subsequent funding since they are a publicly owned utility?
The POU exclusion refers only to publicly-owned electric utilities. Projects at publicly owned wastewater treatment facilities are eligible to apply. Electricity providing POUs are not allowed to receive EPIC funds but may provide letters of support for projects. Projects may be located in POU service territory provided the project can demonstrate IOU ratepayer benefits and is located in California and within a California Balancing Authority.
It is strongly encouraged that projects be located in IOU service territory and/or demonstrate that they will participate in the CPUC SGIP, BioMAT, or other renewable procurement program in order to obtain an IOU electricity generation agreement.

Page 70 of the Phase 2 decision (D.12-05-037) states:  "Finally, considering the source of EPIC funds and consistent with the key guiding principle of producing IOU electricity ratepayer benefits, funds administered by the California Energy Commission may not be used for any purposes associated with POU activities...”

99. Does a public utility providing water services qualify to apply for this grant?
Public utilities providing water services qualify for this solicitation. The restriction of POUs applies to POUs that are electricity providers.
100. Some, but not all of our sites are in disadvantaged communities. In the criteria it states that all of the sites have to be in that area in order to obtain the points possible. If there are two sites in those areas and one not, is it possible to obtain some of the points?

All sites must be located in disadvantaged communities to be eligible for points for this criterion. See Scoring Criteria 9.
“Projects with all test or demonstration sites located in disadvantaged communities and that justify how the project will benefit the disadvantaged community may receive additional points.”
[bookmark: _Toc459970907]Application Requirements 
[bookmark: _Toc459970908]Intent, Commitment and Support Letters 

101. The Phase 1 submittal (abstract) requires a letter of intent for a feedstock agreement, and the Phase 2 submittal (application) requires a commitment letter (feedstock agreement). Please clarify the amount of project capacity (%) that must be demonstrated with the Phase 1 letter of intent and the Phase 2 feedstock agreement, and the amount that can come from feedstock demonstrated to be available in the local region and to be procured during later stages of project development.

See the GFO manual and Attachment 11 for the Letter of Intent requirements. The purpose of the Letter of Intent (and the Feedstock Summary Letter) is to demonstrate that there is a clear path to obtaining the required commitments for Site Control and Feedstock Agreements by Phase 2. If the plans for securing these requirements by Phase 2 are not clear, the applicant may fail the Technical Abstract Screening Criteria (9.a).

102. A Letter of Intent is required for a pilot project, but what if the project has no pilot demo?
Yes, a Letter of Intent is required for AR&D pilot projects and TD&D projects. AR&D projects that do not include a pilot scale component do not require Letters of Intent or Commitment.
103. Who signs the intent letter?
The applicant signs the Letter(s) of Intent. Alternatively, if the Letter of Intent is provided by an outside entity, then an authorized representative from that entity would provide the signature.
104. If you are going to do a public/private partnership to submit for the EPIC Grant, it would be impossible to get through a board meeting agenda before submitting the Phase I Letter of Intent.  Can the public entity be added later, when submitting the Phase II final grant submission?

The requirement for Letters of Intent for Site Control and the Feedstock Agreement is not meant to be burdensome. Applicants need to provide the information required as described in the GFO manual and Attachment. Describing the necessary steps, including approval at board meetings, is recommended to demonstrate how the Phase 2 requirements will ultimately be met. 

The GFO manual states that AR&D pilot and TD&D demonstration or deployment projects must secure a site in California and within a California Balancing Authority and must have a feedstock agreement. Commitment letters demonstrating such are required for Phase 2. However, only a Letter of Intent is required for Phase 1. 

105. Would it be okay to have the local Economic Development organization (which is a joint powers agreement between the County Seat City and the County) be the applicant for the Letter of Intent, and then add the County to the application (after having time to go through the process of getting County approval to be a co-applicant)?

The application does not allow multiple applicants to submit one proposal; however, there can be multiple project partners. It is ok if the local Economic Development Organization is the applicant for Phase 1 and, as indicated in a Letter of Intent, an additional partner is added by Phase 2. It is advisable to explain in the Project Abstract and the Letter of Intent that the County will be added as a project partner after receiving official County approval and will be an official partner by Phase 2.

106. Are fuel attestation forms from SB1122 recommended for the Phase 1 feedstock letter of intent? 
Yes, including a fuel attestation form from SB1122 BioMAT is information that may be useful to the reviewing and scoring team. Section III.C. 11. and Attachment 11 describe what is required in the Letter of Intent for a Feedstock Agreement and the Feedstock Summary Agreement. It notes that applicants may include other “information that may be useful to the reviewing and scoring team.” 
107. Letters of support and commitment are not required for the abstract stage, but we can submit them? If we do, should we use the cover pages?

As applicable, Letters of Intent are required in Phase 1. However, the GFO manual does not require Letters of Support or Commitment as part of Phase 1. If they are submitted as part of Phase 1, they will not be scored. At this stage, the Project Abstract is screened as either pass or fail. It is not necessary to go through the effort of submitting Letters of Support or Commitment for Phase 1. 
108. For Phase 1, what is the recommended format for the letters of commitment for site and feedstock? Should project managers write them or relevant stakeholders (e.g. US Forest Service)?
Phase 1 Letters of Intent are not meant to be burdensome to the applicants. Project managers or relevant stakeholders may provide the Letter of Intent. Limit letters to two pages, excluding a cover page.  Also see response #107 and Addendum to Attachment 11 which now includes instructions for Cover Letters for Letters of Intent and Feedstock Summary Cover Letter.
109. Regarding the suggestion on page 25, encouraging letters of support from the IOU – has this been asked for in a past solicitation? From our interactions with an IOU they are very hesitant to show preference for any particular project.
It does not appear that letters of support from IOUs were requested in the past. This is only a suggestion; it is not a requirement. It is understandable and acceptable if proposals do not include letters of support from the IOUs. 
[bookmark: _Toc459970909]Funding Amounts

110. Is the $4,000,000 max award intended for a large demonstration?
If a project is requesting the maximum award amount of $4,000,000, the Evaluation Committee would expect to see a strong justification for the amount requested. 

111. How much funds are available for each group in this solicitation?
[bookmark: _Toc381079878][bookmark: _Toc382571140][bookmark: _Toc395180637][bookmark: _Toc433981282]
Per the GFO table in Section I. F. Funding 
Amount Available and Minimum/ Maximum Funding Amounts
[bookmark: _Toc381079884][bookmark: _Toc382571146][bookmark: _Toc395180643][bookmark: _Toc433981288]There is up to $23,000,000 available for grants awarded under this solicitation.  
The total, minimum, and maximum funding amounts for each project group are listed below.
	[bookmark: _Toc395180644][bookmark: _Toc433981289]Project Group
	[bookmark: _Toc395180645][bookmark: _Toc433981290]Available funding
	[bookmark: _Toc381079887][bookmark: _Toc382571149][bookmark: _Toc395180646][bookmark: _Toc433981291]Min
award 
	[bookmark: _Toc381079888][bookmark: _Toc382571150][bookmark: _Toc395180647][bookmark: _Toc433981292]Max
award 
	[bookmark: _Toc433981293]Min match funding 

	Group 1: AR&D: Efficient, Sustainable and Lower-Cost Bioenergy: Innovations to Improve Woody Biomass-to-Electricity Systems 
	[bookmark: _Toc432769128][bookmark: _Toc432769250]$5,000,000
	[bookmark: _Toc382568874][bookmark: _Toc432769129][bookmark: _Toc432769251]$400,000
	[bookmark: _Toc382568875][bookmark: _Toc432769130][bookmark: _Toc432769252]$1,500,000
	$0

	Group 2: TD&D: Demonstrate and Evaluate Environmentally and Economically Sustainable Woody Biomass-to-Electricity Systems
	[bookmark: _Toc432769132][bookmark: _Toc432769254]$10,000,000
	$1,000,000
	[bookmark: _Toc382568878][bookmark: _Toc432769134][bookmark: _Toc432769256]$5,000,000
	20%

	Group 3:TD&D: Demonstrate and Evaluate Environmentally and Economically Sustainable Food Waste Biomass-to-Electricity Systems
	$8,000,000
	$500,000
	$4,000,000
	20%



112. If a project is a winner but there are not enough funds, would you make a partial award?
Yes, we have partially funded passing projects in the past because there was not enough funding for the entire project. In these situations, the applicant will be asked to re-scope the project to accommodate the budget reduction. If an agreement between the Energy Commission and the Awardee can be made, the project may end up being awarded partial funding.
113. Would that happen before announcement of the award?

No, typically, the Notice of Proposed Awards (NOPA) lists all of the passing projects that are selected to receive funding. The NOPA includes a recommended funding amount for passing projects. Depending on the situation, it is possible for a project to pass but not be awarded the entire amount requested by the applicant. As mentioned above, if an agreement between the Energy Commission and the Awardee can be made, the project may end up being awarded partial funding. 

114. Is the funding given proportional to the size of the project? How would 1 MW compare to 3 MW?
No, funding for projects is not necessarily proportional to the size of the project. 
[bookmark: _Toc459970910]Budget, Match Funds, and Attachments 

115. Regarding funds spent in California, how is that defined? If something is bought from someone based in Sacramento and they are a supplier who bought it in India, would it still count as funds spent in California?

Funds spent in California is defined as: 
(1) Funds under the “Direct Labor” category and all categories calculated based on direct labor (Prime and Subcontractor Labor Rates) are paid to individuals who pay California state income taxes on wages received for work performed under the agreement; and (2) Business transactions (e.g., material and equipment purchases, leases, rentals, and contractual work) are entered into with a business located in California. 

Airline ticket purchases and payments made to out-of-state workers are not considered funds “spent in California.” However, funds spent by out-of-state workers in California (e.g., hotel and food) are considered funds “spent in California.”

Also see response #55. 
116. For match spent: does money spent before the application count?
No, match spent before the agreement start date will not count toward the projects match funds. All project expenditures (match share and reimbursable) must be made within the approved agreement term. See GFO manual for more information on match funds.  See response #120 below. 
117. Regarding matching funds for Group-1, AR&D, completing construction and start-up of advanced gasification and reforming "equipment," if we can clearly establish the cost of said equipment can we attribute a reasonable cost-share allocation to the use of this equipment as a monthly rental fee, based on the capital cost for the duration of a test program, that would extend approximately 14-months during a proposed AR&D program?
Rental equipment is not expressly addressed in the GFO manual. Applicants must review the Terms and Conditions to determine allowable project costs. Providing supporting documentation for the rates would likely be viewed favorably by the Evaluation Committee so that they are able to assess the reasonableness of the budget costs/ allocations.
Additionally, consider reviewing Section F. Funding 2. Match Funding Requirements of the GFO manual. Applicants are encouraged to use Energy Commission funds to advance research and development and to use match funds for project costs such as facilities’ fees.
118. Facilities Fee: The gasification and reforming equipment referenced above is physically located on University of California property; a monthly ground lease fee and electricity costs are charged for the use of this site. Are the costs for the ground lease and the electricity expenses allowed as line items in a proposed AR&D budget?

See response #117 above.
119. Can grant funds be given to contracts that are signed before the awards are issued? It might be necessary to sign something before the awards.
Spending funds before the award is issued is at the awardees own risk. Invoices for work done outside of the agreement term will not be approved. As noted on page 35: “All project expenditures (match share and reimbursable) must be made within the approved agreement term.”
120. When is the official agreement start date?
The solicitation schedule with anticipated dates is found in the GFO manual. The Notice of Proposed Awards is expected to be posted in March 2017. Once awards are announced, there is a period of contract agreement where, including other things, the various attachments for the agreement become official agreement documents. The anticipated Business Meeting is in September 2017 and the anticipated start date is in October 2017. 

Please note that the effective date of the Agreement is either the start date or the approval date by the California Energy Commission, whichever is later. The California Energy Commission is the last party to sign and no work is authorized, nor shall any work begin, until on or after the effective date.

121. In the past, with the technology deployment and demonstration applications that were awarded, what percent of the total money was spent on research?
The total money spent on research has varied from project to project. This is a competitive solicitation; projects with a greater percentage of the award allocated to research and monitoring, and with results that will have wide-scale application will likely be reviewed more favorably by the Evaluation Committee. 
If you want to see sample budgets for previously funded projects, you may request individual project budgets through our Grant’s Office at:
Crystal Presley-Willis, Commission Agreement Officer
California Energy Commission
1516 Ninth Street, MS-18
Sacramento, California  95814
Telephone: (916) 654-5067
FAX: (916) 654-4423
E-mail: Crystal.Presley-Willis@energy.ca.gov

122. In the past, with the technology deployment and demonstration applications that were awarded, what percent of funding went towards pre-development activities (e.g. construction, site preparation) as discussed on page 22 of the solicitation?

That information is not available in aggregate, but you may request copies of budgets from previously funded projects, as noted above in response #125, to see how the pre-development activities were funded.

123. Is the grant only limited to pay for incremental changes to current technologies/strategies that will result to more efficient biogas production?  Can this be utilized to fund other parts of the whole project, like partly funding the receiving facility where the FOG feedstock will be temporarily stored?
Applicants should justify how proposed budget/ expenditures support the project/innovation, etc. Read the budget instructions noted in Section III. B. 7. Budget Forms (Attachment 7) and in Attachment 7. There are some restrictions as to what can be included. This is a competitive solicitation; budgets should be thoughtful and expenses justifiable. 
124. In the scoring criteria, is any distinction made between baseload power and dynamic power? How is that going to be addressed?
No, the scoring criteria do not distinguish between baseload power and dynamic power. However, the Energy Commission generally recognizes that there is a benefit to renewable baseload generation and dynamic renewable generation (for example, power that can ramp up and down) in terms of addressing the intermittent issues associated with wind and solar. 
Attachment 12 is where applicants lay out the costs and benefits of the project, and this would be an appropriate place to justify the particular benefits offered by a project, such as renewable baseload and dynamic power.
125. Can you confirm that the information required for Attachment 4 for the Abstract submission is only the questions on the first page of the attachment, items a. – h. under Phase 1: Technical Abstract Screening?

Yes, the Project Abstract, as explained in Attachment 4, includes only the Technical Abstract Screening criteria a-h.

126. Regarding the LCOE calculator – it is structured to calculate costs based on thermal values, but this is an energy project. Whether or not a fuel has more BTUs, while it can be correlated, is not directly related to the potential value for creating electricity. I’m wondering why the calculator is based on heat and not energy.

The CPUC LCOE calculator is based on a basic pro forma for estimating delivered power costs for biomass feedstocks.[footnoteRef:29] It was developed through a long process as part of a CPUC BioMat program.[footnoteRef:30] We are using it for consistency and to get an understanding of the project’s LCOE.  [29:  The model can be downloaded through this link:
http://www.cpuc.ca.gov/WorkArea/DownloadAsset.aspx?id=5727]  [30:  Information regarding the proceeding can be reviewed here: http://www.cpuc.ca.gov/SB_1122/ 
] 


Calculations relating to the cost of generation should be performed in the Small-Scale Bioenergy LCOE Excel calculator. If applicants determine that the LCOE calculator is not applicable or useful, in Attachment 12, clearly explain why and provide other cost measures and the justifications for these measures.

The Measurement Areas in Attachment 12, page 2, includes Heat Content and Heat Rate as well as other measurement areas.

It may be helpful to note when completing Attachment 12, that Awardees are required to measure, verify, and evaluate various measurement areas during the course of the project and provide data and results in the final report. Presentation of the data should be easy to read and understand and clearly present the rationale behind the analysis. It may be efficient to combine the efforts required for Attachment 12 with the requirements for the measurement and verification plan.  
127. Can you provide better examples for Attachment 13?

Yes. Attachment 13 will be updated to reflect a suggested format for reporting the 500 hours of performance data and analysis.
[bookmark: _Toc459970911]Formatting and Project Reporting

128. The schedule says it must be submitted in Excel? Not a pdf?
Yes, Attachment 6a Schedule, and Attachment 7 Budget must be submitted in Excel, not pdf. 
[bookmark: _Toc459970912]Royalty Payments

129. Do any of these funds have to be repaid to CEC over time based on future royalties of these developed technologies, etc.?
The EPIC T&Cs have provisions for royalty payments. They are required for future sales over $1,000 in a calendar year and limited to three times the amount of funds paid by the Commission under the Agreement. For more information, see the EPIC Terms and Conditions: http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/pier.html#epicterms   
[bookmark: _Toc459970913]Miscellaneous 

130. Are you getting a greater audience at these workshops compared to last time?
The workshop audiences do seem larger compared to last time. With regard to this set of workshops, in Sacramento there were 40 to 50 people in the room and 91 online. In Merced there were not a lot of people in person, but about 30 online. In Diamond Bar there were about 25 people in the room and 22 online.  
131. Is there a map for IOU territories available?
The Energy Commission has the following maps:
· Energy Maps of California http://www.energy.ca.gov/maps/
· IOUs & Counties- http://www.energy.ca.gov/maps/serviceareas/CA_Electric_Investor_Owned_Utilities_IOUs.html 
· PDF- http://www.energy.ca.gov/maps/serviceareas/CA_Electric_Investor_Owned_Utilities_IOUs.pdf 
· Electric Utility Service Areas http://www.energy.ca.gov/maps/serviceareas/Electric_Utility_Service_Areas.html
· Detailed PDF http://www.energy.ca.gov/maps/serviceareas/Electric_Utility_Service_Areas_Detail.pdf 

Additionally, each IOU is likely to have maps of its territory available online.
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